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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: The Governmental

          3  Operations Committee is still going on in the next

          4  room, on a Campaign Finance Board matter. We were

          5  originally going to start after they finished, but

          6  in the interest of time, and I know a number of the

          7  people that have to testify on some of the BID

          8  issues have to leave, so we're going to convene the

          9  hearing first here and we will get to some of the

         10  other items that we have to vote on towards the end

         11  of the meeting.

         12                 Today we'll be considering Intro. No.

         13  691, a local law that would establish a new DUMBO

         14  BID in Brooklyn. On September 15th, this Committee

         15  held the opening hearing on this Intro and gave all

         16  of those interested in the establishment of the BID

         17  an opportunity to appear.

         18                 We then adjourned the hearing for the

         19  statutorily mandated 30-day objection period, which

         20  is a time during which property owners objecting to

         21  the establishment of a BID may file objections.

         22                 We will hear from the Small Business

         23  Services, but it is my understanding that no

         24  objections were filed.

         25                 We're also holding a further hearing
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          2  on Intro. No. 345, proposed local law to establish

          3  the Madison 23rd Flatiron Chelsea BID in Manhattan.

          4                 If you remember, on October 21st,

          5  Small Business Services asked us to find that

          6  certain properties in the proposed district would

          7  not be benefitted and that we should notice a

          8  further hearing as provided by the BID law and set

          9  forth revision of the boundaries of the proposed BID

         10  to exclude these properties.

         11                 So, today we are here to reconsider

         12  the BID, with the revised boundaries, and give

         13  everyone another opportunity to speak.

         14                 In considering both the establishment

         15  of the DUMBO BID, which I expect a call to vote on

         16  today, as well as the establishment of the Madison

         17  23rd Flatiron Chelsea BID, about which we'll hear

         18  testimony today, and wait for the new objection

         19  period to run, if we can answer the following four

         20  questions affirmatively, we may adopt the local

         21  laws.

         22                 The four questions must be prepared

         23  to answer -- we must be prepared to answer are:

         24                 1. Were all notices of hearing for

         25  all hearings required to be held published and
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          2  mailed as required by law and otherwise sufficient?

          3                 2. Does all the real property within

          4  the district's boundaries benefit from the

          5  establishment of the district, except as otherwise

          6  provided by the law?

          7                 3. Is all real property benefitted by

          8  the district included within the district?

          9                 4. Is the establishment of the

         10  district in the best interests of the public?

         11                 If the Committee finds in the

         12  affirmative on these four questions, and the number

         13  of objections required to prevent the creation of

         14  the BID were not filed, then the legislation can be

         15  adopted.

         16                 We will ask Small Business Services

         17  to address these questions.

         18                 We will now take testimony on the

         19  Madison Avenue Chelsea BID.

         20                 For those of you that don't know me,

         21  I'm David Weprin, Chair of the Finance Committee,

         22  and we've been joined by Council Member Gale Brewer

         23  from Manhattan. And our Majority Leader, Council

         24  Member Joel Rivera of the Bronx, and on my immediate

         25  right is Counsel to the Finance Committee, Jim
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          2  Caras.

          3                 Proceed.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: Thank

          5  you, and good morning, Mr. Chairman, and members of

          6  the Finance Committee. I'm George Glatter, Assistant

          7  Commissioner at the Department of Small Business

          8  Services.

          9                 SBS supports the amended boundaries

         10  for the revised Madison 23rd Flatiron Chelsea

         11  Business Improvement District Plan.

         12                 Geographically the proposed BID is

         13  generally bound from the south side of 21st Street

         14  to the north side of 28th Street, including avenues

         15  and midblocks along Fifth and Park Avenue South,

         16  Madison Avenue from 23rd to 28th Street, Lexington

         17  Avenue between 22nd and 26th Street, along 23rd

         18  Street from the West Side of Third Avenue to the

         19  West Side of Sixth Avenue, along Broadway from the

         20  south side of 21st Street to the north side of 28th

         21  Street, and along Sixth Avenue from the south side

         22  of 21st Street to the north side of 23rd Street.

         23                 The proposed BID will provide

         24  supplemental services, including maintenance and

         25  sanitation, safety and security, identity and
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          2  marketing, outreach to the homeless, administration

          3  and other services as may be required for the

          4  promotion and enhancement of the district.

          5                 The 23rd Street Flatiron District

          6  Management Association will manage the BID. The

          7  budget for the first year of operation, following

          8  approval of the BID establishment is 1,680,000

          9  dollars. As required by law, the 23rd Street

         10  Flatiron BID Steering Committee, mailed a summary of

         11  the City Council resolution to each owner of real

         12  property within the proposed district at the address

         13  shown on the latest City assessment roll, and such

         14  other persons as are registered with the City to

         15  receive tax bills concerning real property within

         16  the district, and to tenants of each building within

         17  the proposed district.

         18                 In addition, SBS arranged for a

         19  publication of a copy of the summary of the

         20  resolution at least once in the City Record. Thank

         21  you, Mr. Chairman.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you, Mr.

         23  Glatter.

         24                 Are there any questions for Mr.

         25  Glatter?
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          2                 Would anybody else like to speak in

          3  favor of the proposal?

          4                 Identify yourself for the record.

          5                 MR. FRANKEL: I'm Robert Frankel. I'm

          6  with GVA Williams. We are managers and owners of

          7  property in the intended area for the new BID.

          8                 I'm also Chairman of the Steering

          9  Committee for this BID. We represent about 2.1

         10  million square feet in the area amongst dozens of

         11  buildings, and we wholeheartedly support the

         12  formation of this BID going forward, as we have

         13  other BIDs in the City as well.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

         15                 Any questions?

         16                 Council Member Brewer?

         17                 Mr. Rose.

         18                 MR. ROSE: Pleased to be here again to

         19  speak on behalf of the formation of the BID. As a

         20  resident property owner and former community board

         21  chair for the neighborhood, this is a BID that's

         22  been a long time in the offing. It's gone through

         23  many iterations. I think this is really at a point

         24  now where it's both very much needed and also has

         25  really been drawn very carefully and I just want to
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          2  reaffirm the support of people in the neighborhood,

          3  both businesses and property owners and residents

          4  for this.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you, Mr.

          6  Rose.

          7                 Could you just identify yourself for

          8  the record. I know who you are but not everybody

          9  else does.

         10                 MR. ROSE: I'm sorry. Joseph Rose.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: And would anybody

         12  else like to speak in favor of the BID?

         13                 MR. LOCKER: Good morning, Mr.

         14  Chairman. Yes, my name is Frederick Locker. I am

         15  Counsel to Toy Industry Association, which accounts

         16  for the bulk of the toy industry in the United

         17  States. We represent companies that produce

         18  approximately $24 billion of retail. We conduct

         19  international toy fare in New York. We've committed

         20  recently to stay in New York. That brings to the

         21  City economy about $300 million annually.

         22                 We represent many tenants in the

         23  area. These are commercial tenants and we are in

         24  favor of the BID. Thank you for your time.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you. We've
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          2  also been joined by Council Member Christine Quinn,

          3  whose district encompasses the BID, and I believe

          4  Council Member Quinn would like to make a statement.

          5                 Council member.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

          7                 Most of the BID does fall in my

          8  district, though I do share it with Council Member

          9  Lopez, and I just wanted to thank all the folks who

         10  were pushing and supporting for the BID for their

         11  help while we've been working on this BID. It's

         12  boundaries and composition and rates have resolved

         13  and I just urge my colleagues on the Committee to

         14  vote in support of this BID.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         16  Council Member.

         17                 We've also been joined by Council

         18  Member Robert Jackson, from Manhattan and I see

         19  Council Member Diana Reyna from Brooklyn and Queens

         20  and Council Member Madeline Provenzano in the

         21  audience from the Bronx and Council Member Tish

         22  James from Brooklyn.

         23                 Would anybody else like to speak in

         24  favor of the BID?

         25                 Would anybody like to speak in
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          2  opposition to the BID? Going once, going twice,

          3  thank you all for your testimony.

          4                 All right, we're going to temporarily

          5  recess the Finance Committee and reconvene in about

          6  ten minutes in the Committee Room, because we have

          7  some other items that require a vote. So, if all

          8  Finance Committee members could please stay around,

          9  we're going to need you for a vote on the tax-fixing

         10  resolutions in particular, regarding real property

         11  tax.

         12                 Other than that, we're in recess.

         13                 (Recess taken. Time noted: 11:40 a.m.

         14                 Resumed at 12:40 p.m.)

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Good afternoon,

         16  and welcome to the rest of today's Finance Committee

         17  hearing.

         18                 My name is David Weprin. I'm Chair of

         19  the Committee. Today we have a number of items on

         20  our agenda. Today we will consider three

         21  preconsidered resolutions which together will have

         22  the effect of saving residential property taxpayers

         23  a total of over $200 million in property taxes.

         24                 The three resolutions amend the

         25  property tax resolutions we adopted along with the
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          2  budget on June 30th. State law in effect on June

          3  30th capped the increase attributed to any class

          4  share at five percent.

          5                 Subsequent State legislation amended

          6  a law to establish a lower cap at two percent. So,

          7  today we are amending the three property tax-fixing

          8  resolutions to reflect the change in law holding

          9  class share increases for any class of property of

         10  two percent rather than five percent.

         11                 With this legislation and these

         12  amended resolutions, class 1 properties will save an

         13  average of $82 on an annual basis when compared to

         14  what they would have paid this year at the five

         15  percent cap.

         16                 In other words, if we were to vote no

         17  on these resolutions, the tax bills of class 1 and 2

         18  properties would face larger increases. These

         19  resolutions will hold down the increases that arise

         20  by operation of State law because of the rapidly

         21  rising collective value of class 1 and 2 properties.

         22                 To put this into a larger context,

         23  over the last 15 years, these lower caps that the

         24  Council has routinely pushed for have saved class 1

         25  home owners over $460 million in property taxes that
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          2  they would have otherwise owed.

          3                 So, I urge all my colleagues to vote

          4  yes on these amended property tax resolutions.

          5                 We are also considering Intro. 691, a

          6  local law that would establish a new DUMBO BID in

          7  Brooklyn. On September 15th of this year, this

          8  Committee held the opening hearing on the Intro and

          9  gave all those interested in the establishment of

         10  the BID an opportunity to appear. We then adjourned

         11  the hearing for the statutorily mandated 30-day

         12  objection period, which is the time during which

         13  property owners objecting to the establishment of a

         14  BID may file objections. We will hear from the

         15  Department of Small Business Services, but it is my

         16  understanding that no objections were filed.

         17                 We are also holding our further

         18  hearing on Intro. No. 345, the proposed Local Law to

         19  establish the Madison Avenue 23rd, Flatiron, Chelsea

         20  BID in Manhattan. If you remember, on October 21st,

         21  Small Business Services asked us to find that

         22  certain properties in the proposed district would

         23  not be benefitted and that we should notice a

         24  further hearing as provided by the BID law and set

         25  forth a revision of the boundaries of the proposed
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          2  BID to exclude these properties.

          3                 Today we are here to reconsider the

          4  BID with the revised boundaries. We had given

          5  everyone an opportunity to speak a little while ago

          6  in the Chambers, but if anyone missed that

          7  opportunity, we will give them a last chance now.

          8                 In considering both the establishment

          9  of the DUMBO BID, which I expect to call a vote on

         10  today, as well as the establishment of the Madison

         11  Avenue 23rd Flatiron Chelsea BID, about which we'll

         12  hear testimony today, and then wait for the new

         13  objection period to run, we may adopt the local

         14  laws.

         15                 The four questions we must be

         16  prepared to answer are:

         17                 Number 1. Were all notices of

         18  hearings for all hearings required to be published

         19  and mailed as required by law and otherwise

         20  sufficient?

         21                 2. Does all the real property within

         22  the district boundaries benefit from the

         23  establishment of the district, except as otherwise

         24  provided by the law.

         25                 3. Is all real property benefitted by
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          2  the district included within the district?

          3                 4. Is the establishment of the

          4  district in the best interest of the public?

          5                 If the Committee finds in the

          6  affirmative on these four questions and the number

          7  of objections required to prevent the creation of

          8  the BID were not filed, the legislation could be

          9  adopted.

         10                 We will ask Small Business Services

         11  to address these questions.

         12                 Finally, we will consider one

         13  preconsidered Land Use item for a tax exemption for

         14  the Gates Patchen Apartments in Brooklyn. The

         15  project is 104-unit Section 8 complex that was

         16  foreclosed upon by HUD and transferred to a

         17  non-profit group.

         18                 The tax exemption is part of the plan

         19  to turn the complex into an affordable tenant-owned

         20  limited equity cooperative.

         21                 Council Member Boyland, whose

         22  district this project is located, supports the

         23  rehabilitation of the project.

         24                 We have a number of members that have

         25  joined us. We have Council Member Albert Vann from
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          2  Brooklyn, Council Member Bill DeBlasio from

          3  Brooklyn, Council Member Simcha Felder from

          4  Brooklyn, Council Member Gale Brewer from Manhattan,

          5  Council Member Mike McMahon from Staten Island,

          6  Council Member Christine Quinn from Manhattan,

          7  Council Member Diana Reyna from Brooklyn and Queens,

          8  and Council Member Helen Sears from Queens.

          9                 First, before we proceed to testimony

         10  from Small Business Services, did anyone come to

         11  speak on the Madison Avenue 23rd Flatiron BID who

         12  did not get a chance to speak earlier?

         13                 Please step forward. This is Leslie

         14  Hendrix?

         15                 MS. HENDRIX: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. Just state

         17  your name for the record and who you represent.

         18                 MS. HENDRIX: My name is Leslie

         19  Hendrix and I'm here representing Flower Tenants

         20  Corporation, a co-op at 50 West 29th Street. We own

         21  the two commercial storefronts in our building.

         22                 The first that we heard about a BID

         23  was two days ago. We have received no mailings about

         24  any plans for prior meetings from the BID Steering

         25  Committee.
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          2                 We found out about this meeting

          3  thoroughly by chance.

          4                 If there was ever an area crying out

          5  for a BID, it's ours. We are a commercial

          6  neighborhood, with heavy foot traffic. We have huge

          7  amounts of litter. The trash cans are overflowing.

          8  We have street vendor problems. We have

          9  counterfeiting up the wazoo. We have tour busloads

         10  of shoppers pouring in every weekend, and the

         11  Council wants to cut the guts of this area, the most

         12  heavily-trafficked box, out of the BID because

         13  quote/unquote, we will not be benefitted.

         14                 Why? Why will we not be benefitted,

         15  as you decided in your October 21st session? Have

         16  you walked our neighborhood on the weekend? Walk

         17  around on a windy Saturday night and see how much

         18  trash hits you in the face. How can it be any worse.

         19                 We want this BID. We need this BID.

         20  We've been writing to Council Member Quinn's office

         21  for years about our issues. We formally requested a

         22  meeting. No response. Department of Sanitation?

         23  Sorry. Can't put in extra trashcans.

         24                 So, now we'd like some feedback from

         25  the City Council, because we really need help and
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          2  we're willing to pay for this BID. And as far as I

          3  can see, we're not even being allowed to pay to fix

          4  our own problem. Basically what you're doing by

          5  excluding our area from the consideration for this

          6  BID is like having a 34th Street BID and excluding

          7  Herald Square.

          8                 So, it makes no sense to us and we

          9  would really like to know why.

         10                 I also have pictures of some of the

         11  problems that are in the areas that have excluded,

         12  that you've excluded in the October 21st session,

         13  and it seems to me that the very things that a BID

         14  is created to act on are the very problems that

         15  we're having. So, we urge you to make sure that

         16  everyone has been notified, because in our

         17  experience we know nothing about it. Thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you. I

         20  believe Council Member Quinn wanted to say something

         21  in response to your statement.

         22                 Council Member Quinn.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Let me say two

         24  or three things. One, that area was cut out of the

         25  BID because at the first, first hearing we had about
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          2  this BID like a year ago, numerous people, your

          3  neighbors, came and testified in opposition,

          4  requesting that the boundaries of the BID be redrawn

          5  and be taken out.

          6                 Now, there are large other areas

          7  abutting the BID that I would also like to see

          8  covered. I would prefer the BID go further west, as

          9  well on 23rd Street.

         10                 So, what's done today is in no way,

         11  shape or form the end of what can be done as it

         12  relates to this BID or a different BID, because the

         13  problems facing the area that are cut out may in

         14  fact be better served by a different BID that's

         15  focused more on that area.

         16                 That's a larger discussion to have.

         17                 I don't know why your particular

         18  property wasn't notified, because there were many

         19  people from that area who came to the Council

         20  requesting the change in the lines. So, the thinking

         21  that led to my office supporting the change in the

         22  line and the Council supporting the change in the

         23  line, was based on numerous requests to my office,

         24  the Council, and I believe to the Department of

         25  Small Business Services that the lines be changed.
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          2  And that came from individuals, as well as the

          3  Flower and Market Association.

          4                 You're very right, my office has done

          5  a great deal of work in that area on the problems,

          6  and the ones you ticked off are very present and

          7  ongoing.

          8                 I will apologize and we'll follow up

          9  in my office if there was a request from you for a

         10  meeting that didn't get followed upon on. I'll make

         11  sure I get back to you on how that happened and why

         12  and discuss with the staffperson, you know, what the

         13  matter was there. And we will follow up with Small

         14  Business Services to figure out why your property

         15  didn't get notified. That's also very problematic.

         16                 But there was a very, very clear and

         17  strong feeling from your neighbors that they did not

         18  want to be in this BID and we felt we had to listen

         19  to that because there were so many folks.

         20                 We can certainly, and my office will

         21  be happy to regroup with you and those folks to see

         22  if there's other make-up of a BID or something else

         23  that they would like.

         24                 MS. HENDRIX: Because it seems to me,

         25  if we were not notified there must be other people
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          2  that have not been notified too.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Around the time

          4  of the first hearing, to make sure, because people

          5  came forward in opposition, both the Council and the

          6  Agency, Department of Small Business Services,

          7  wanted to make sure everybody knew about it. Because

          8  when you hear opposition, you want to make sure

          9  there isn't somebody out there who doesn't know

         10  about it, and is also opposed to it.

         11                 And that's why I think we need to

         12  talk to the agencies because there might be

         13  something in the tax roll, whatever, that screwed up

         14  with your address, because we did extra outreach to

         15  that area after the first hearing even going

         16  door-to-door, dropping off notification. So, look,

         17  it's possible that there's people that don't know

         18  about it, but really tremendous direct outreach was

         19  done after the first hearing because so many people

         20  showed up with concerns that, quite frankly, I

         21  didn't anticipate. I thought they would all feel

         22  more like you did so I think there might be a

         23  glitche by no fault of your own, with how your

         24  property is listed with the City, which might have

         25  led for their failure to notify you.
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          2                 So, let me just make sure at the end

          3  of this I get your phone number so we can follow up

          4  and also find out what happened as it relates to my

          5  office, for which I apologize.

          6                 MS. HENDRIX: Then I hope then at

          7  least the City Council will address some of the

          8  issues that we hope to be covered by a BID if we are

          9  going to be excluded.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Absolutely. As

         11  a follow-up to this, I think we should pull together

         12  a meeting with you, anyone else you suggest, the

         13  people who testified in opposition, and the Flower

         14  and Market Association to continue that ongoing

         15  process.

         16                 MS. HENDRIX: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Ms. Hendrix, you

         18  may want to talk to Commissioner Glatter about the

         19  notification and why you weren't notified, if you

         20  weren't, before you leave. He's going to testify

         21  next. But if you want to stay around?

         22                 MS. HENDRIX: Okay, thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Mr. Glatter, do

         24  you want to testify on the DUMBO BID?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Just restate your

          3  name for the record, in this continued hearing.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: It's

          5  George Glatter, I'm Assistant Commissioner at the

          6  Department of Small Business Services.

          7                 And in terms of the DUMBO BID, as

          8  required by the BID law, the DUMBO BID Steering

          9  Committee mailed the summary of the City Council

         10  Resolution to each owner of real property within the

         11  proposed district at the address shown on the latest

         12  City assessment roll, or to such other persons who

         13  are registered with the City to receive tax bills

         14  concerning real property within the district, and to

         15  tenants of each building within the proposed

         16  district.

         17                 In addition, SBS arranged for the

         18  required publication of a copy of the summary of the

         19  resolution in the City Record. We are pleased to

         20  report on the results of the objections filed with

         21  the City Clerk against the establishment of the

         22  DUMBO Business Improvement District.

         23                 At the conclusion of the objection

         24  period at 5:00 p.m. on October 14th, 2005, and

         25  taking into consideration any objections postmarked
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          2  by that date, no objections were filed.

          3                 Our review concluded that the level

          4  of objections filed in terms of either the number of

          5  properties or the percentage of the assessed

          6  valuation is within the acceptable threshold needed

          7  to advance the bill for favorable consideration by

          8  the full Council.

          9                 SBS requests that the City Council

         10  having determined that the four questions that are

         11  required to be answered in the affirmative by

         12  Section 25-407 of the City Administrative Code have

         13  been answered in the affirmative, and that the

         14  Council approved the establishment of the DUMBO BID

         15  in Brooklyn.

         16                 The Department of Business Services

         17  supports the establishment of the DUMBO BID and now

         18  a judgment, the BID will improve business conditions

         19  and the quality of life in the DUMBO area making it

         20  a better place to live, work and visit and laying

         21  the groundwork for further neighborhood economic

         22  development.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Would anyone else

         24  in the audience like to speak on either BID, the

         25  Flatiron Chelsea or the DUMBO BID?
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          2                 Seeing none, any questions for Mr.

          3  Glatter from any of my colleagues?

          4                 Thank you, Mr. Glatter.

          5                 Okay, does anyone have any questions

          6  on the tax-fixing resolutions? Yes, Council Member

          7  Felder.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you,

          9  Chairman Weprin.

         10                 I want to thank Councilman Al Vann,

         11  the Co-chair of the Brooklyn Delegation, who with

         12  Larian Angelo spent time this morning trying to

         13  explain to us what the impact of this tax-fixing

         14  resolution is, even though you've done it, you know,

         15  the Finance staff has done it year-after-year.

         16                 I still think, I have one statement,

         17  one question. I'd like to know, if we do not vote

         18  for this, what will happen?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: There will be a

         20  significantly larger increase. The five percent will

         21  go into effect rather than the two percent cap. And

         22  it will be about $200 million additional money in

         23  property taxes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: So what did

         25  the State do already? What did the State vote for

                                                            27

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  already?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: The State

          4  authorized us to do a lower cap, which we're doing

          5  today.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: They didn't do

          7  anything?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: They authorized

          9  us to do a smaller cap.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: So, again, if

         11  we don't do anything today, you're saying it's going

         12  to be at a higher rate?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Correct.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Didn't they

         15  already vote as though that's what would happen

         16  today?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: No.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Didn't the

         19  State vote as though that's what would happen today?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Well, they

         21  authorized the vote. But we still have to vote.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I'm not being

         23  belligerent. I want to know really clearly if we did

         24  nothing. And the reason I'm asking is because we do

         25  this every year, okay?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Now there's a

          4  $400 tax rebate so that people in our communities

          5  are supposed to feel it's Christmas in October when

          6  they get a $400 check.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Well, some of

          8  them won't get it until the real Christmas.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Okay. You

         10  know, I like getting $400, I'd like to get $400

         11  every day in the mail, but the point is, the $400 is

         12  really not solving the problem. We're going to have

         13  another $400 and then what happens after that? And

         14  in the meanwhile the tax is going up and up and up.

         15  And I will be the first to say that when we voted

         16  for the 18 and a half percent increase there were a

         17  few members that were heroes that did not vote for

         18  the increase at that time. I was not one of them.

         19  But I'm sorry I was not. I never understood what 18

         20  and a half meant. It didn't mean 18 and a half. It

         21  meant 32 with everything combined.

         22                 Now we're back here saying to our

         23  constituents, you should really love us, you know

         24  why? Because if not for us, you'd be paying a lot

         25  more money.
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          2                 I don't like it. I don't think that's

          3  the way it should work.

          4                 If there's any mechanism by which we

          5  can do something concrete. I'm not talking about

          6  today. I'm talking about a permanent solution,

          7  because this goes on every single year. I know I

          8  sound like James Oddo. This goes on every single

          9  year. We come back here, the staff explains that if

         10  we don't do this they're going to pay a lot more in

         11  taxes, so we're heroes. We are not heroes, we are

         12  causing taxpayers in this City to pay an

         13  extraordinary amount of tax, even if it's less, you

         14  know? And I don't know what can be done, but I

         15  certainly think the $400 fix, is a terrible

         16  solution, because the $400 comes and goes. It

         17  disappears. But at the end of the day, our

         18  constituents feel like they're getting ripped off.

         19  That every year their tax is going up. And if it

         20  meant, I'm speaking for myself, obviously, if it

         21  meant not getting $400, but their tax going up by

         22  less, and it being fixed -- and I'm not crazy

         23  because I know part of this whole structure is that

         24  the tax increase is compounded. Every year it goes

         25  up and it goes up and it goes up on top of that.
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          2  It's not just merely the percentage.

          3                 So, I would request respectfully that

          4  we should, you know, we've been trying to do -- you

          5  know, they had the campaign finance thing and they

          6  accused the City Council of rushing and I think that

          7  was a terrible thing. We never rush. But with the

          8  taxing, this is crazy. There's no member, I don't

          9  think there is any member that doesn't get heat

         10  wherever they go for two things, one, the increase

         11  in tax, and two, for tickets. And I think we should

         12  stop this quick fix, the $400, and really if we can

         13  think about doing something really that will

         14  permanently -- you know, I say that again,

         15  permanently, help people in our neighborhoods.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I agree with a

         18  lot of what you've said, Council member. As a matter

         19  of fact, I've been arguing and I was accused of

         20  actually accusing the Finance Department of having,

         21  and this was a quote that I gave, overly aggressive

         22  tax assessors. But I made a mistake when I gave that

         23  quote, because I subsequently found out that they're

         24  not overly aggressive tax assessors, because there

         25  are no tax assessors that evaluate single-family
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          2  homes, class 1 properties, none at all. It's

          3  strictly done by computer model which is programmed

          4  by officials in the Department of Finance. So, to me

          5  the objection is even stronger against the

          6  Department of Finance and the situation that they

          7  use for evaluating market value.

          8                 And they will tell you, oh, or I've

          9  been told by tax assessors off the record, and I'm

         10  going to put this on the record, because I have been

         11  told this and I can testify to that on the record,

         12  that they've been told that, don't worry about

         13  increasing the market value significantly, because

         14  Class 1 properties, single-family homes, are only

         15  valued at six percent of that market value, so even

         16  though the market value can go up and up and up and

         17  up, it's still only six percent.

         18                 However, if it keeps going up and up

         19  and up, that six percent keeps going up and up and

         20  up, and I share your enthusiasm and your feelings

         21  about it. And I agree, we should do something about

         22  it.

         23                 We've been joined by a few

         24  colleagues, Council Member Jim Oddo, our Minority

         25  Leader from Staten Island, and Council Member Dennis
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          2  Gallagher, our Minority Whip from Queens, and

          3  Council Member Leroy Comrie, our Majority Whip, also

          4  from Queens, and Council Member Eva Moskowitz from

          5  Manhattan.

          6                 Okay, let me get a list here. McMahon

          7  first.

          8                 Yes, Council Member McMahon.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I do just

         10  want to respond briefly to Council Member Felder's

         11  eloquent remarks in that certainly the work that we

         12  do here, I don't think we should refer to as heroic

         13  or not heroic, and I don't want to relive the past.

         14  I would just say that there were extraordinary times

         15  that the City face, and extraordinary measures were

         16  required at that time, and I'll leave it at that.

         17                 I will say, though, that that was

         18  three years ago. And many things have changed and

         19  many dynamics are affecting the property tax rates

         20  that the people are paying in the City of New York,

         21  and it is high time that we roll up our sleeves,

         22  work together to understand the issue. Because what

         23  we're discussing today is something that we must do

         24  as required by State law.

         25                 We, as a Council, have no choice but
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          2  to address the fluctuating values and rates that are

          3  paid within the pool of property taxes. State law

          4  requires us to do that. And we are doing it I think

          5  with this vote today, almost as far, the Staten

          6  Island Delegation voted for a zero percent cap,

          7  which would mean a few more dollars relief to

          8  homeowners, and we are at a two percent cap. If we

          9  don't do anything, home owners will pay more. That's

         10  the reality and we must do this by State law.

         11                 I do agree with your final analysis

         12  that things are running, that the carriage, someone

         13  has let go the reins and now the horses are

         14  stampeding, and I have introduced a bill that would

         15  provide a ten percent cut in the rate for property

         16  taxes now that the City, the ship of state of the

         17  City of New York is on an even keel.

         18                 So, I'd ask you to join me in that

         19  bill. Thank you. And, of course, ask the Chairman

         20  for a hearing on that bill when the time and the

         21  schedule so permits.

         22                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I support that.

         24                 Council Member Oddo.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.
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          2  Chairman.

          3                 I think on a serious note I want to

          4  follow up on the first two speakers. And I think to

          5  answer Council Member Felder's legitimate question,

          6  you can't look at this vote in a vacuum, and this is

          7  part of the revenue side, but we have to look at the

          8  total fiscal picture of this City. No one in this

          9  Council is going to be heroic until we are the body

         10  that leads the discussion on the things causing the

         11  gaps.

         12                 And as long as those things causing

         13  the gaps continue to go unchecked, there will always

         14  be this need for more revenue and there will always

         15  be this pressure to raise property taxes, because in

         16  the four corners of this building, there are people

         17  who believe that class 1 property owners aren't

         18  taxed enough.

         19                 In the four corners of this building,

         20  there are people who would like to see those

         21  property taxes increased. And don't sweat it, it's

         22  not heroic, or it's not courageous for those folks

         23  to increase property tax, because they believe in

         24  their heart of hearts that they're too low. And

         25  until we address Medicaid, until we do pension,
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          2  until we do debt service and health care and until

          3  those things are checked, there will always be this

          4  need, and we're not going to be able to act upon

          5  Council Member McMahon's bill of ten percent until

          6  we get those things in check.

          7                 And, listen, I've talked about this

          8  in this body before, you can't shrugg your shoulders

          9  and say it's non-discretionary. The CBC doesn't it

         10  believe it's non-discretionary. The CBC put out a

         11  great piece months ago saying that you can control

         12  these four things.

         13                 And somebody in this building has to

         14  talk about it, and for four years I've been begging

         15  and pleading that it be the City Council.

         16                 We did a mod a year and a half ago,

         17  if you remember, where we did a budget mod where we

         18  gave $400 million more to cover the cost of Medicaid

         19  and no one in this body blinked.

         20                 Well, when we do a budget mod to give

         21  $400 million more to Medicaid, and then we come down

         22  to this point in the calendar when we do this

         23  adjustment, well, the two are related, and until we

         24  link the two, until we say although it's not

         25  directly within our purview, we as a body are going
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          2  to talk about it, and we're going to have to address

          3  the things causing the gap, we're always going to

          4  have this struggle. And there are going to be some

          5  of us, people that represent Class 1 property

          6  owners, particularly, who say we want zero, we want

          7  to give them the most help, and others who say, no,

          8  we need to spread it out. But you have to link the

          9  conversation. You can't look at it in a vacuum. This

         10  is one part of the overall picture, and folks, one

         11  day, and Larian gave us an update this morning and

         12  said Wall Street is still revving at better than

         13  expected, one day that engine is going to slow down

         14  and the gaps are going to continue to grow, and then

         15  you're going to really start talking about property

         16  taxes. It's not going to be the way Mike wants to go

         17  in cutting, it's going to be going up.

         18                 We need to lead the fight. Next

         19  January we need to lead the debate.

         20                 Sorry for ranting.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         22  Council member.

         23                 Council Member Brewer.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you. I

         25  have a question about the co-ops, condos and
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          2  rentals. I don't know if you could tell me with your

          3  very tremendous ability, explain how that savings is

          4  stronger for the co-ops, condos and rentals?

          5                 And secondly, I have submitted an LS,

          6  because a lot of the co-op boards complain to me,

          7  and this is not directly related, but I just didn't

          8  know if you had a comment, it does help the cash

          9  flow.

         10                 They pay their taxes on a more

         11  regular basis than they have in the past apparently,

         12  and that's adding to their cash flow problems. And I

         13  didn't know, if you could just help explain maybe

         14  what you did with the Brooklyn Delegation or others,

         15  in terms of that co-ops, condos and rentals, and

         16  also if you know anything about a different payment

         17  structure that has been imposed by the Department of

         18  Finance.

         19                 MS. FELTON: Yes, hi. Nadine Felton

         20  with the Finance Division staff. The reason why the

         21  savings are greater for the co-ops and condos is

         22  generally their assessed value is a higher percent,

         23  so their tax bill is basically higher, and that's

         24  why the savings is greater.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Well, I'm glad
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          2  it is, but it's hard for the rentals in particular

          3  to actually see that.

          4                 MS. FELTON: What we try to do is to

          5  impute like a savings for the rentals. There is

          6  some, when the -- the rent stabilized and rent

          7  controlled, the property taxes do comprise a fairly

          8  large component of the formula. I think it's more

          9  than a quarter, about 29, 30 percent. Which is one

         10  of the reasons why there was a larger increase a

         11  couple of years ago.

         12                 So, in other words, what this will do

         13  is that this will lower, will enter into the formula

         14  for rent stabilization increases that will actually

         15  make it slightly lower than it would have been had

         16  the rates we adopted in June remained what they

         17  were.

         18                 We're saving the class 2 about three

         19  percent, a three percent reduction in the tax rate,

         20  as a result of doing the two percent cap on class

         21  sharing cases.

         22                 On the change in the payment

         23  structure, I don't that the Department of Finance is

         24  sending out these statement of accounts, and I

         25  believe they are, now co-ops and condos can pay on a
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          2  quarterly basis as opposed to the larger ones,

          3  because it's based on assessed value per unit.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Yes, the

          5  assessed value is low though.

          6                 MS. FELTON: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: And they want

          8  it to be higher. I'm just saying --

          9                 MS. FELTON: They just changed that

         10  last year, we changed it to 80,000.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Not high

         12  enough.

         13                 MS. FELTON: It may not be for the

         14  large co-ops. Maybe we should revisit that, yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Yes, it's an

         16  issue.

         17                 MS. FELTON: I think it covers a

         18  larger percent but maybe not all of it.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: They prefer

         20  the twice yearly and they would like a larger --

         21                 MS. FELTON: We changed it to make

         22  them go on a quarterly basis.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right.

         24                 MS. FELTON: So, what you're saying,

         25  we may have to --

                                                            40

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: And a higher

          3  ceiling.

          4                 MS. FELTON: Okay. So, we should talk

          5  about that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council member,

          7  if you can stay in the room, I'm going to call for a

          8  vote.

          9                 We're going to couple five items.

         10  Intro. 691, which is the DUMBO BID. Council Member

         11  DeBlasio, if you could stay, we need your vote.

         12                 The three preconsidered property tax

         13  resolutions, and the preconsidered Land Use items.

         14  If you could call the roll please.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Weprin.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Aye on all.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Provenzano.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Quinn.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Moskowitz.

         22                 (No response.)

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Brewer.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I vote aye.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Comrie.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: DeBlasio.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Aye.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: McMahon.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Aye.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sears.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Permission to

          9  explain my vote, please.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: So ordered.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Just very

         12  quickly, noting that the total amount of the

         13  property tax is 13 billion and it goes on. When we

         14  do the budget and we have to do budget cuts, we do

         15  it from approximately 17 billion of a $50 billion

         16  budget because the rest is very dedicated. So, I

         17  would have to agree with my colleagues that the

         18  property tax covers most of what we either take away

         19  or what we have to add, and we wish to reinstate.

         20  Because there is nothing in our revenue packages

         21  that raises what we do instantly with the property

         22  tax. And I agree with my colleagues that we vote for

         23  this, and I do because we have to, the fact is there

         24  is no way that that 13 billion and certainly I

         25  understand where my colleague is coming from, but

                                                            42

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  just with the fact that we have to pay 25 percent of

          3  that Medicaid State expense, there is no way,

          4  Councilman Felder, that this 13 billion is not going

          5  to go up, because that is what has to cover all the

          6  programs that we have. And when we have to cut

          7  because the revenue raising is so small that we have

          8  to increase this property tax. So, when we are going

          9  to cut the property tax, then we all have to realize

         10  we're going to have to make cuts in programs that

         11  nobody wants to do.

         12                 And Mr. Chair, I think that this

         13  Committee has the responsibility to march on Albany

         14  and to really do something with our responsibility

         15  for Medicaid. Because we're going through a ritual

         16  and we're not really dealing with the problem.

         17                 If you just look and when you get to

         18  the bottom line and you look at those totals, that's

         19  what the issue is, out of 17 billion there is almost

         20  14 billion that is covered by the property tax. That

         21  doesn't make any sense at all.

         22                 So, I reluctantly vote yes on that

         23  property tax because I know that we have to do it,

         24  on all the others as well.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Vann.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Aye.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Perkins.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Aye.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Moskowitz.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Aye.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gennaro.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gallagher.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: May I be

         11  temporarily excused to explain my vote?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes, you may.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: I will be

         14  voting aye on all coupled general orders with the

         15  exception of the three preconsidered tax-fixing

         16  resolutions. And I've listened to the debates here

         17  today, from my colleagues, from Council Member

         18  McMahon, and also Minority Leader Jimmy Oddo and my

         19  colleague Helen Sears, and it's interesting how we

         20  sometimes see things differently in this Council.

         21                 We talk about sometimes not wanting

         22  to see cuts in programs, and I think sometimes we

         23  ought to look at seeing if we can cut programs.

         24  There are a lot of programs that are ineffective and

         25  inefficient, and the problem is that sometimes in
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          2  this Council there are members of this body and

          3  there are members of people who are in government

          4  that would rather look to raise the taxes on the

          5  middle class property owners all throughout this

          6  City before they'd be looking to make cuts in

          7  programs.

          8                 So that means it's okay to say that

          9  family members have to cut back on their expenses to

         10  pay additional tax increases before this body will

         11  look at cut and failed social programs and programs

         12  that don't work throughout the City of New York.

         13                 I think my colleague Jimmy Oddo hit

         14  the nail right on the head, when it comes to that we

         15  have to look at what causes these budget deficits

         16  that we'll be facing in the outer year, and we all

         17  together are going to have to stand up and fight

         18  back on some of these expenses that are growing each

         19  and every day.

         20                 And to my colleague, Council Member

         21  McMahon, I guess the extraordinary times led to

         22  extraordinary surpluses, because the taxpayers paid

         23  so much. I look forward to hearing your bill in the

         24  Finance Committee, and hopefully, we can use that

         25  time to open up a true dialogue and true debate on

                                                            45

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  how we can grapple with future City budget deficits.

          3  The time has long come. We certainly didn't hear

          4  enough of it during this last campaign season.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Oddo.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: May I be

          7  temporarily excused to explain my vote?

          8                 The name of the document I alluded to

          9  earlier prepared by the Citizens' Budget Commission

         10  is called "The Myth of the Four Uncontrollables."

         11  And what it tries to do is end the myth that these

         12  things are outside the control of City government.

         13                 The Board of Education was

         14  uncontrollable, outside the control of City

         15  government, until there was a fight and we took over

         16  and we got mayoral control. And I have to take

         17  respectful exception to what Council Member Sears

         18  said, because I think she echoed that myth, that

         19  myth that we only have $17 billion of a $50 billion

         20  budget to work within to find those cuts.

         21                 I disagree with that notion. I

         22  fundamentally disagree with it. I think that that

         23  quote/unquote nondiscretionary part of the budget,

         24  the biggest part of the budget now, has to be

         25  addressed, and we have to fight to get control and
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          2  we have to. There are things we could do on a City

          3  level legislatively and from a policy perspective,

          4  but we could also use our offices as a bully-pulpet

          5  to effect the change, the same way that we fought

          6  together to get control of the Board of Education.

          7                 If we continue to feed into this myth

          8  that we only have a say of only a small portion of

          9  the budget, we're feeding right into the status quo

         10  and I don't think we could afford to do that.

         11                 I vote aye on all, with the exception

         12  of the tax-fixing resolutions.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Felder.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I vote aye on

         15  all, with the exception of the tax-fixing

         16  resolutions.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of 15 in the

         18  affirmative --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

         20  Jackson.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

         22  Jackson.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Aye.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of 16 in the

         25  affirmative zero in the negative and no abstentions,
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          2  Intro. 691 and preconsidered LU item are both

          3  adopted.

          4                 Preconsidered resolutions are adopted

          5  by a vote of 13 in the affirmative, three in the

          6  negative and no abstentions.

          7                 Council Members, please sign the

          8  Committee reports.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: The Finance

         11  Committee is now adjourned and I will allow members

         12  who are in the building to vote prior to the Stated

         13  Meeting. Other than that, we're adjourned.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Committee on Finance,

         15  Council Member Boyland.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I vote aye.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: 691 and preconsidered

         18  Land Use item. Preconsidered resos now stand at 14

         19  in the affirmative, three in the negative and no

         20  abstentions. Thank you.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Lopez.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Aye.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Fidler.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Aye. But only

         25  because Margarita was aye.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of 19 in the

          3  affirmative, zero in the negative, no abstentions,

          4  Intro. 691 and preconsidered LU are adopted.

          5                 The preconsidered resolutions now

          6  adopted by a vote of 16 in the affirmative, zero in

          7  the negative and no abstentions.

          8                 (Hearing concluded at 1:20 a.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 16th day of November 2005.
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         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3
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          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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